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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL ({IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Hampton, on Wambaw Creek near the Santee River, was built by Noe Serre,

a Huguenot settler. The original house was a four-room center-hall struc-
ture, with two more rooms on the second floor. The one-and-a-half storey
frame building on raised brick foundations was 40 feet long and 34 feet
deep, and had two interior chimneys. In 1757, the plantation came into

the possession of Daniel Horry through marriage, and shortly thereafter he
more than doubled the size of the original house. A second full storey with
two new rooms was added, and- extensions, each about 25 feet wide and 34 feet
deep, were made to both ends, thus bringing the structure to its present
size, 90'x34'. The present hipped roof, with two dormers in front and rear,
was built over the entire house, and each new wing had a new interior
chimmey. The extension at the east end was taken completely by a large two-
storey ballroom, and the new wing at the west end had a large two-storey
master bedroom that extended from the south wall more than halfway through
the house. In the rear of this chamber were two more bedrooms, situated one
above the other.

The first and second storey windows had nine over nine light sash, and were
adorned by exterior panelled shutters. Rather than leave the second storey
front walls of the new extensions blank, and in order to preserve the
symmetricality so important in 18th century Georgian architecture, Horry
inserted false windows, in the guise of closed shutters panelled like those
below. This device also repeated in the north wall of the east extention.
The first floor windows of the master bedroom in the west wing had interior
primitive slat blinds, a device previously used in Charleston houses.

In 1790-91, the south facade assumed its present unified appearance, when
a six-column wide giant portico and pediment were added across the center
portion of the original house. The roof of the portico is supported by
eight columns and two pilasters, made of solid pine. Rosettes, panels,
and flutings adorn the frieze of the portico, and the pediment contains a
circular window with four keystones. Forty feet wide, 20 feet deep, and
floored with red tile, this giant Roman Doric portico is of particular
interest because it reveals the slender columns, the paterae, and dainty
flutings of the Adam style of the Federal period of this execution.

Hampton Plantation has recently come into the possession of the Department
of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism, of the State of South Carolina, upon the
death of that State's poet laureate, Archibald Rutledge, the house's last
owner. A team of architectural historians are currently preparing a
detailed report on the structure before undertaking what is expected to be
an extensive restoration of the house to a former grandeur which has lately
been lost to the ravages of neglect. The house, however, remains in good
structural condition.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Hampton, erected in 1735, greatly enlarged after 1757, and with final
additions made in 1790-91, is an excellent example of a modest-sized frame
structure that evolved through organic growth into a large, unified
Georgian frame country house. The structure includes one of the earliest
examples of use of the giant portico in American domestic architecture,
and Hampton is South Carolina‘s finest example of a large two-and-a-half

frame Georgian plantation house.
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The official national historic landmark boundary of Hampton Plantation
consists of that perimeter of land today controlled by the South Carolina
Department of Parks and Recreation. Although the original and historical
extent of the plantation at Hampton was, of course, much larger than the
294 acres now administered by the State of South Carolina, that area of
land does effectively protect the pastoral nature of the land from which
sprang the plantation house at Hampton, and to which its character
doubtless owes some debt.

The tract is bounded on the north by Wambaw Creek (some maps call it
Hampton Creek), on the east by other parts of Hampton Plantation not in
the hands of the State of South Carelina, on the south by Highway S-10-857,
and on the west by lands now or formerly of Lucas and lands occupied by
Hampton Church. This legal description, as well as an orange pencil line
indicating the perimeter of the property, appears on the accompanying map,
entitled '"Map of Tract 'A' of Hampton Plantatien' which was prepared for
the South Carolina Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism,

November 19, 1971, by Legare Hamilton, Registered Surveyor in South
Carolina. '

Near the center of Hampton Plantation property, is a 20 acre area of land
identified as the Sam Hill Cemetery. While within the perimeter of the
Hampton property of the South Carolina Department of Parks, Recreation, and
Tourism, this area is in the hands of a local group of Black residences

who are entitled to exercise certain rights over the land, owing to the use
of the land by their ancestors going back to the days of slaveholding on the
plantation. That area is part of the landmark.

The nature of the landmark enclosed by the 294 acre perimeter is that of an
area which was once agricultural, but which has now been allowed to revert,
to some extent, through the forces of nature, to something considerably less
controlled. It is a mixture of grassland, swamp, and light forest, which
could quite easily be returned (as it likely will be now by its new owner)
to a plantation-like setting. The nature of the land within the 20 acre
"Sam Hill Cemetery" lot is the same.

The accompanying USGS 7.5 minute map, also serves to locate Hampton
Plantation in the Santee area. No structures other than the plantation house
at Hampton contribute to the national significance of the landmark.



